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Group Structure
The REWE combine consists of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne (RZF), and its subsidiaries, and
together with the cooperatively organised independent retail trade forms the REWE Group, an
internationally operating group of companies in the retail and tourism sector.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group comprised the parent company RZF and 275 (previous year: 266)
domestic and 171 (previous year: 149) foreign subsidiaries.
With effect as at 1 May 2019, RZF acquired all but eight shares with restricted transferability held by
the shareholders of REWE – Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne (RZAG). After the acquisition of the
remaining eight shares, RZF holds all shares in RZAG since 17 June 2020.
The REWE Group operates in various business segments, which are divided into divisions and
segments.

Business Segments

The Retail Germany business segment includes the REWE, PENNY Germany and Retail Germany
Central Companies divisions.
The REWE division is active in both retail and wholesale, operating 1,722 supermarkets and
consumer stores under the REWE and REWE CENTER brands. The wholesale business supplies 2,653

Page 3

REWE and REWE Dortmund partner stores and nahkauf stores as well as other customers. REWE is
also active in the online business via its REWE delivery and mail order services at REWE.de.
The PENNY Germany division operates 2,150 discount stores under the PENNY brand.
In addition to the domestic real estate companies, the Retail Germany Central Companies division
also includes the production and sale of baked goods under the Glocken Bäckerei brand and the
production of meat and sausage products under the Wilhelm Brandenburg brand, domestic and
international merchandising companies as well as online retail trade (ZooRoyal and Weinfreunde)
and e-commerce services (REWE Digital), which were then assigned under the Other business
segment in the previous year.
The Retail International business segment covers the Austrian Full-Range Stores, CEE Full-Range
Stores and PENNY International divisions. The Austrian and CEE Full-Range Stores divisions operate
supermarkets and consumer stores at a total of 2,892 locations. In Austria, the stores are operated
under the BILLA, MERKUR (from April 2021 onwards: BILLA Plus) and ADEG brands. In addition, the
wholesale business supplies 358 ADEG partner stores. The Retail International stores are also
represented with the BILLA supermarkets in Bulgaria, Russia, Slovakia and the Czech Republic. In
addition, drug stores are also operated in Croatia and Austria under the BIPA brand. In Lithuania,
supermarkets are operated under the IKI brand.
In the PENNY International division, the PENNY MARKT and PENNY MARKET brands are operated at a
total of 1,588 locations in Italy, Austria, Romania, the Czech Republic and Hungary.
The new Convenience business segment was formed in the course of the acquisition of the
Lekkerland Group as of 1 January 2020. The business segment comprises the Convenience Germany,
Convenience International and Convenience Central Companies divisions. The Convenience Germany
division – which also includes the 17 REWE To Go stores managed under the Retail Germany business
segment until 31 December 2019 – as well as the Convenience International division supply filling
station shops, department stores, grocery stores and beverage markets, fast food chains, kiosks,
cafeterias, bakeries and other retailers of convenience products. More than 85,700 retail outlets are
supplied in total. Lekkerland operates not only in Germany and the Netherlands but also in Belgium,
Luxembourg and Spain under the name Conway. The Convenience Central Companies division
bundles central services and IT.
The Travel and Tourism business segment comprises the Travel and Tourism Central Europe, Travel
and Tourism Northern Europe, Travel and Tourism Eastern Europe, Travel and Tourism Destination
Areas and Travel and Tourism Central divisions. It comprises a number of tour operators, travel sales
channels (travel agency chains, franchise sales channels and online portals) as well as destination
agencies and hotels under the DER Touristik umbrella brand. Travel and Tourism business segment
operates in the source markets of Germany, Austria, Switzerland, Eastern Europe, as well as
Scandinavia, Finland, France, the United Kingdom and the Benelux countries through the Kuoni units.
Travel and Tourism mainly operates under the brands Apollo, Calimera, DER.COM, DER Reisebüro,
DERPART, DERTOUR, EXIM Tours, FISCHER Group, Helvetic Tours, ITS, Jahn Reisen, Kuoni, Meier’s
Weltreisen and Sentido. The Travel and Tourism business segment has a total of 809 travel agency
offices. In addition, 583 locations are operated by franchisees.
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The DIY Stores business segment operates 281 DIY stores in Germany under the toom Baumarkt and
B1 Discount Baumarkt brands. As part of the wholesale business, an additional 37 partner stores and
franchisees are also supplied.
In particular central services provided by the parent company and various subsidiaries for Group
companies and third parties are combined under the Other business segment. These services are
mainly procurement functions (merchandise wholesale business and warehousing), central
settlement, del credere assumptions, IT services, energy trading (EHA) as well as coordination of
Group-wide advertising activities.
Locations as at 31 December 2020
Country
Germany

Retail Germany

Retail
International

Travel and
Tourism

DIY Stores

Convenience

Total

3,872

--

510

281

17

4,680

Austria

--

2,151

--

--

--

2,151

Czech Republic

--

633

96

--

--

729

Italy

--

392

--

--

--

392

Hungary

--

226

7

--

--

233

Romania

--

276

59

--

--

335

Slovakia

--

155

14

--

--

169

Russia

--

164

--

--

--

164

Nordic countries*

--

--

5

--

--

5

Bulgaria

--

132

--

--

--

132

Switzerland

--

--

71

--

--

71

United Kingdom

--

--

33

--

--

33

Lithuania

--

227

--

--

--

227

France

--

--

13

--

--

13

Croatia

--

124

--

--

--

124

Poland
Total

--

--

1

--

--

1

3,872

4,480

809

281

17

9,459

* Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden.
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Economic Environment
1.

MACROECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

2020 was overshadowed mainly by the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic. According to the
WHO, there were more than 84 million (confirmed) cases of infection in 2020, and more than 1.8
million people have died with COVID-19 (as at 4 January 2021). The worldwide spread of the
coronavirus plunged the global economy into a deep crisis. Measures to contain the spread of the
pandemic and shore up the economy were introduced around the globe. Those measures affected
economic development to varying extents in different countries: public health policies intended to
contain and control the pandemic, behavioural changes by private households and companies, and
quarantine measures which brought economic activity to a standstill hampered the production of
goods and caused acute disruption to domestic and cross-border supply chains. Uncertainty caused
private households to drastically cut back on spending and companies to postpone investments. This
recession has hit not only the manufacturing sector but also the service sector particularly hard. Low
infection rates and the resulting easing of measures to slow the outbreak led to rapid recoveries of
economic activity in many countries in the third quarter; nevertheless, economic output remained
down as compared to the level at the beginning of 2020. Infections have been rising sharply again
since the beginning of the fourth quarter, particularly in Europe, the United States and in parts of
South America, where currently more people are being infected by the coronavirus every day than
had been the case in spring 2020. Many countries reacted to this trend by re-imposing lockdowns,
albeit less restrictive ones than in the spring of 2020. The second wave of infections undermined
consumer and company sentiment, causing economic growth to slow towards the end of the year.
Overall, global economic output fell by 3.5 per cent. Many countries implemented fiscal and
monetary measures to mitigate the impact: to support the European economy, the European Union
(EU) introduced a 1,074.3 billion euro multi-annual financial framework as well as a coronavirus
recovery fund with a volume of 750.0 billion euros, and the United States passed a coronavirus relief
package worth 900.0 billion dollars. The successful development of vaccines, as well as emergency
authorisations for use of such vaccines and the delivery of the first vaccines in December 2020 give
rise to the hope that the pandemic can be contained in the foreseeable future.
With Brexit accomplished and after 10 months of negotiations, the EU and the United Kingdom
agreed on a trade deal on Boxing Day. Because it was no longer possible for the EU Parliament to
ratify the deal before 31 December 2020, the member states and the British Parliament approved
provisional application beginning from 1 January 2021.
Moreover, there remains the risk of exacerbated trade conflicts, particularly between China and the
United States, but also latently between the United States and the EU.
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Changes in economic data for REWE Group countries
in per cent1

GDP
2019

Inflation

2020p*

2020p

2019

2020p*

Unemployment
2020p

2019

2020p*

2020p

Germany

0.6

1.1

-5.4

1.4

1.4

0.5

3.1

3.1

4.2

Austria

1.6

1.7

-6.7

1.5

1.6

1.2

4.5

4.6

5.1

Czech Republic

2.3

2.6

-6.5

2.6

2.2

3.2

2.0

2.0

2.8

Netherlands

1.7

1.6

-5.4

2.7

1.7

1.1

3.4

3.5

4.1

Belgium

1.4

1.3

-8.3

1.3

1.4

0.5

5.4

5.6

5.6

Italy

0.3

0.5

-9.2

0.6

1.0

0.1

9.9

9.8

9.7

Romania

4.1

3.5

-4.8

3.9

3.5

2.6

3.9

4.0

5.3

Hungary

4.9

3.3

-6.1

3.4

3.4

3.4

3.5

3.4

4.6

Slovakia

2.4

2.7

-7.1

2.8

2.4

1.8

5.8

4.9

6.6

Lithuania

3.9

2.7

-1.8

2.2

2.4

1.1

6.3

6.1

8.1

Russia

1.3

1.9

-3.6

4.5

3.5

3.2

4.6

4.8

5.6

Spain

2.0

1.6

-11.1

0.8

1.2

-0.2

14.1

13.2

15.9

Bulgaria

3.4

3.2

-4.0

2.5

2.7

1.4

4.2

4.4

4.5

Switzerland

1.2

1.3

-5.3

0.4

0.6

-0.8

2.3

2.8

3.2

Luxembourg

2.3

2.8

-5.8

1.7

1.8

0.5

5.6

5.5

7.0

United Kingdom

1.5

1.4

-10.0

1.8

1.9

0.8

3.8

3.8

5.4

Croatia

2.9

2.7

-9.0

0.8

1.2

0.0

6.7

6.9

8.2

Sweden

1.3

1.5

-4.7

1.7

1.7

0.8

6.8

6.9

8.5

France

1.5

1.3

-9.0

1.3

1.2

0.6

8.5

8.3

7.6

Denmark

2.3

1.9

-4.5

0.7

1.0

0.4

5.1

4.8

5.7

Norway

1.2

2.4

-2.8

2.2

1.9

1.4

3.7

3.5

4.5

Sources: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook Database October 2020, Update January 2021; Joint forecast (“Gemeinschaftsdiagnose”)
Database Autumn 2020
p = projected; p* = projected in previous year
¹ Year-on-year GDP change in %

In Germany the coronavirus crisis led to a significant slump of the economy in 2020: Gross domestic
product (GDP) for the year decreased by 5.4 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.1 per
cent). Implemented corona protection measures such as closures in the retail sector, the suspension
of production in the automotive industry as a key industry in Germany and worldwide travel
warnings had a drastic impact on economic development in spring 2020. The German government
introduced a number of measures to contain the consequences of this crisis (including a 130.0 billion
euro economic package, hardship funds, simplified loan procedures for businesses, compensation for
short-time work). The signs of economic improvement in the summer proved to be deceptive: in the
autumn months Germany was hit by a second wave of infections. The measures imposed in reaction
to this development halted the economic recovery in its tracks, as did the fact that certain key
trading partners in the eurozone in particular were severely hit by a further wave.
The pandemic has also placed pressure on the labour market, with the unemployment rate hitting
4.2 per cent (previous year and pre-coronavirus outlook: 3.1 per cent), the increased use of shorttime work had a positive impact on this figure. Inflation fell in the second half of the year due to a
sharp, albeit temporary, drop in oil prices over the course of the year and a reduction in VAT rates.
In Austria, too, economic output declined due to the coronavirus, with GDP falling by 6.7 per cent
(pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.7 per cent). The lockdown in April was followed by an initial
easing of measures introduced to stop the spread of the virus, which generally had a positive effect
on economic development in subsequent months. However, the renewed lockdown in November in
reaction to the sharp rise in infections slowed this development considerably, albeit the sectors were
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effected variably: while manufacturing proved relatively resilient in the crisis, the heavyly affected
service sector in particular – especially the catering and hotel industry and parts of the retail sector –
felt the consequences of the coronavirus crisis. Uncertainty is rife among consumers, whose reaction
to the easing of measures has been very restrained due to the ever-present risk of infection and job
worries. The unemployment rate reached 5.1 per cent, with the hotels and catering industries hit
hardest by the negative trend. A short-time work scheme and an economic relief and stimulus
package were developed to mitigate the consequences of the coronavirus crisis.
Italy was particularly hard affected by the coronavirus crisis, both in terms of public health and from
an economic perspective. In 2020, economic output decreased by 9.2 per cent (pre-coronavirus
outlook: slight growth of 0.5 per cent). A drastic lockdown to contain the first wave brought large
parts of the economy to a standstill. After a surprisingly positive third quarter, the economy once
again fell back into crisis mode towards the end of the year, as infections began to rise again sharply
in November. Tourism, catering and tour operators were hit hardest, but also the manufacturing
sector also experienced steep declines in revenue. A large number of measures were initiated in the
hopes of bolstering the heavily battered economy; these included liquidity injections for companies
and increasing short-time work compensation. The Italian economy will also receive support from
the EU recovery fund. The impacts on the labour market are mitigated by further adjustments to
short-time work compensation.
After imposing early and wide-reaching lockdowns in spring, the central and eastern European
countries managed to contain the pandemic at first. As a consequence, the official infection and
death rates during the first wave were relatively low, although the economic impacts were similar in
scale to those felt in other European countries. The Czech Republic was hard hit by the second wave,
recording the highest 14-day incidences of new infections in the EU for weeks. A state of emergency
was declared again at the beginning of October, with containment measures tracking the infection
trend since then. A new lockdown was imposed on 27 December, entailing business closures and
curfews; supermarkets are not allowed to sell any goods beyond basic necessities. Overall, the Czech
Republic experienced a 6.5 per cent decline in economic output (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of
2.6 per cent). While the automotive industry recovered significantly during the year, the tourism and
catering sectors continued to struggle with the impacts of the pandemic. The situation on the labour
market is marked by a years-long shortage of qualified workers; short-time workcompensation and
wage subsidies are intended to support affected companies to maintain jobs. In addition, the Czech
government has taken a variety of measures to stimulate the economy and support individual
sectors.
Romania lifted its state of emergency in mid-May. A renewed rise in infections in the autumn led to
the extension of a partial lockdown until January 2021. The coronavirus pandemic hit Romanian
companies hard. For many companies, the crisis negatively impacted production, procurement, sales
and investment activities in the short to medium term. Most companies expect a drop in sales and
tight liquidity. In 2020, GDP decreased by 4.8 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 3.5 per
cent).
During the first wave, Hungary declared a national state of emergency, and passed emergency
legislation which was retracted in June. The measures imposed caused the service sector to largely
stand still or to continue to operate under restrictions, as in parts of the retail sector. Manufacturing
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production activities severely declined in April as a result of production standstills, particularly in the
automotive industry. A state of emergency was again declared in November. Due among other things
to a drop in demand and postponed investments, the decline in economic output in 2020 amounted
to 6.1 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 3.3 per cent). The negative impacts on the labour
market, which had been stable prior to the crisis, are expected to be mitigated by the aid
programmes passed for companies.
Slovakia, which was one of the countries with the lowest infection and death rates due to the strict
measures imposed in spring, has recorded a strong increase in infection rates since autumn, which
results in a state of emergency being declared again in October. A strict curfew was imposed prior to
Christmas, permitting only essential trips and errands. Retail trade and smaller service providers
were shuttered, with the exception of stores selling products to cover basic needs; supermarkets are
not allowed to sell any goods beyond basic necessities. The Slovak economy, which depends
particularly on exports and the automotive industry, was severely impacted by the effects of the
coronavirus crisis in the first half of the year, but was able to recover significantly in the third quarter
driven by exports and private consumption. In 2020, economic output decreased by 7.1 per cent
(pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 2.7 per cent). The labour market was in a relatively favourable
condition when the coronavirus crisis hit: with unemployment at a record low in 2019, various
measures such as regulations on short-time work are intended to keep the impact on employment to
a minimum.
In March 2020, Lithuania imposed strict measures to contain the coronavirus pandemic. Many
service providers and industrial companies had to close for several weeks. This caused the loss of
income and jobs among employees, which in turn affected consumption. Despite this, Lithuania's
economy proved to be the least vulnerable in the coronavirus crisis: economic output in 2020
decreased by 1.8 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 2.7 per cent).
Russia is one of the countries with extremely high COVID-19 infection rates. After a brief phase of
stabilisation in the summer, infections have been rising rapidly again since October. Although the
Russian government imposed a six-week lockdown during the first wave, which brought society and
the economy to a standstill (exceptions were made only for strategically important companies and
employees), no such measures were taken subsequently. Aside from the coronavirus crisis, the
Russian economy was also faced with falling oil prices. In 2020, GDP decreased by 3.6 per cent (precoronavirus outlook: growth of 1.9 per cent).
Bulgaria has been in a state of epidemiological emergency since mid-May, with the coronavirus
currently spreading at a faster pace than in the autumn. A range of restrictions was in place until the
end of January 2021, such as the closure of non-food businesses, catering and shopping centres; only
grocery stores, small retailers and DIY stores were permitted to remain open. The economy shrank in
the second and third quarter due to weaker exports and domestic demand. In 2020, GDP decreased
by 4.0 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 3.2 per cent). A variety of measures were
intended to mitigate the impacts of the coronavirus crisis on the labour market.
Croatia declared an epidemic emergency in March, and has been gradually easing the resulting
measures since the end of April. Infection rates in the country have been rising sharply since autumn.
The Robert Koch-Institut defined popular destinations in Croatia as risk areas in August and
September, and other countries such as Austria and Italy also warned against travelling to the
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country. The high share of the tourism industry in Croatia's GDP and the resulting strong dependence
on income from this sector are the main reasons for the massive economic slump: In 2020, GDP
decreased by 9.0 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 2.7 per cent). The losses in Croatia's
most important economic sector also affected other industries that rely on tourism. At the end of
November, the Croatian government reacted to the second wave again by imposing a lockdown on
selected segments of the service sector. In order to support the economy and protect jobs, various
measures were taken such as the reimbursement of fixed operating costs for companies in the
service sector that were closed as a result of the lockdown, the expansion of wage subsidies to cover
a larger group of companies, tax relief and increased short-time work compensation.
The economic impact of the coronavirus pandemic in the Scandinavian countries varied in extent.
Although Sweden long opted to take a different path through the crisis, imposing almost no
restrictions on the economy or public life, private consumption nevertheless suffered under the
circumstances. The country had experienced the highest death rate per capita for quite some time.
Due to rising infection rates, restrictions have now been put in place in order to contain the spread of
the virus. Economic output decreased sharply in the second quarter, albeit by less than in most other
countries. Because Sweden's economy is heavily export-dependent, the country's economic
development also depends on the development of the pandemic in other countries. Economic
output decreased by 4.7 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.5 per cent). Denmark's
economy, similarly to that of Sweden, has proven relatively robust. The loss of economic output in
the second quarter was slight by comparison with many other European countries. Particularly in
April and May, the manufacturing sector recorded sharp declines in production, and private
consumption recorded losses in March and April, before the reopening of retailers after Easter
boosted revenues accordingly; private consumption was thus a key factor supporting economic
growth. Overall, the country's GDP decreased by 4.5 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.9
per cent). Norway's economy had already had a weak start to the year, even before the coronavirus
crisis hit. Already in mid-March, comprehensive measures were taken to control the coronavirus
pandemic, with low infection and death rates for the country as a result. Aside from the coronavirus
crisis, the Norwegian economy was hit by the collapse of oil prices in particular. GDP decreased by
2.8 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 2.4 per cent).
The coronavirus pandemic also led to a steep recession in Switzerland. In 2020, economic output
decreased by 5.3 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.3 per cent). The measures to contain
the first wave, the severe drop in foreign demand and supply chain disruptions led to a sharp decline
in business in many sectors, although signs of a quick recovery began to be apparent in the third
quarter. The coronavirus has been spreading again throughout the country since October. To contain
it, measures were first strengthened and – because they proved insufficient – the country went into
lockdown in December. In contrast to earlier recessions, the service sector was also heavily affected,
particularly the hospitality, passenger transportation and entertainment industries. In order to
support businesses in crisis, the government expanded the economic aid made available in April 2020
in the form of bridge financing. In order to mitigate the impact on the labour market, eligibility to
receive short-time work compensation was expanded; in addition, the maximum period for drawing
such benefits was extended to 18 months.
The economy in the United Kingdom is suffering an unprecedented slump. GDP decreased by 10.0
per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.4 per cent). In the second quarter of 2020 alone, the
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economy – already strained due to Brexit – shrank by 19.8 per cent. A significant improvement was
recorded in the third quarter driven mainly by private consumption and corporate investment, both
of which benefited from fiscal-policy measures. After a rapid increase in infections in October, a
partial lockdown was first imposed on only selected sectors. Before Christmas the measures were
tightened further, with London under a strict lockdown at the end of 2020. The impact on the labour
market is expected to be palpable: already, the steepest decline in employment figures since the
2008/2009 financial crisis has been recorded. The short-time work compensation did not expire in
autumn 2020 as originally planned; rather, it was extended until April 2021, covering the jobs of 9.9
million workers and thus preventing mass unemployment.
In France, economic output decreased by 9.0 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.3 per
cent). France is among the countries hit hardest by the pandemic. France's economy suffered under
the measures imposed to contain the first wave, such as a particularly strict and extended curfew
and the closure of non-essential businesses. During that time, the manufacturing sector experienced
massive declines in production output, household consumption fell precipitously and business
investment was also significantly depressed. Once the measures were lifted, the economic recovery
was strong. However, economic activity has been dampened after renewed strict curfews and
restrictions, which were reimposed at the end of October due to a sharp rise in infections. Shops
were allowed to reopen at the end of November provided they complied with the rules, and in midDecember the strict curfew was replaced by a night-time curfew. Because France responded to the
coronavirus crisis by implementing comprehensive and far-reaching measures to support the
economy, the impact of the crisis on the labour market in 2020 was moderate.
Economic output in Spain decreased by 11.1 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.6 per
cent), thus making the country the hardest hit of the European Union members. In order to combat
the coronavirus pandemic, which struck the country with particular severity from a health
perspective, a state of emergency was declared and strict measures were imposed to contain the
first wave, which were not eased until May. The tourism sector, the country's key sector, suffered in
particular due to the pandemic; income for this sector is expected to be down year on year by 99
billion euros, which will affect other sectors as well, such as catering. The loans made available by the
government to the sector amounting to 3.4 billion euros will not be sufficient to offset the loss of
revenue. In addition to the measures implemented by the Spanish government, the EU recovery fund
is also expected to support the Spanish economy with 140 billion euros. The labour market must face
massive consequences: in the country, which had been struggling with high unemployment since the
financial crisis, the unemployment rate rose to 15.9 per cent (pre-coronavirus outlook: 13.2 per
cent). At the peak of the crisis, short-time work was able to mitigate the risk of job losses for 4.8
million workers, and the scheme has been extended until the end of January 2021 at the least.
Applications for short-time work rose sharply in November as a state of emergency was once again
declared.
The coronavirus crisis has also affected the economy of the Benelux countries. After years of growth,
the Dutch economy recorded a decline of 5.4 per cent in 2020 (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of
1.6 per cent). For several weeks during the first wave, companies remained closed or were unable to
continue production at full capacity due to a lack of supplies because of the coronavirus pandemic or
because the government imposed restrictions to reduce the spread of the virus. In reaction to rising
infections, a large number of businesses remained shuttered until January 2021. Government
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measures were intended to prevent structural harm to the economy. As a small and exceptionally
open economy, Luxembourg has been deeply affected by the global economic downturn. A 5.8 per
cent decline in economic output was recorded in 2020 (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 2.8 per
cent growth). In addition to falling incomes due to short-time work and job losses, declining
investment activity by companies also affected the economy. An 8.3 per cent reduction in economic
output was recorded for Belgium (pre-coronavirus outlook: growth of 1.3 per cent). Because of the
coronavirus crisis, economic activity in Belgium declined by 12.1 per cent in the second quarter 2020
as compared to the previous quarter. The decrease in economic activity affected the manufacturing,
construction and service sector in roughly equal measure. The Benelux countries also implemented
various measures to support the economy.

2.

DEVELOPMENT BY SECTOR

Food Retail Sector
Industry trend: revenue
Change in %

Retail

Retail

Food retail

Food retail

2020

2019

2020

2019

Nominal

nominal

nominal

nominal
1

Germany

4.8

3.4

11.9

Austria

0.0

2.0

8.6

2.4

Czech Republic

0.2

5.4

4.2

4.3

-8.0

0.8

3.1

0.7

Italy

1.5

Hungary

2.9

9.1

9.4

8.7

Romania

2.3

10.2

10.8

10.8

Slovakia

0.1

0.8

4.2

4.4

-

1.6

-

1.4

1.9

6.5

4.9

5.2

Bulgaria

-10.1

3.8

-6.0

3.5

Croatia

-4.5

5.0

0.0

3.5

Spain

Russia²
Lithuania

-7.6

2.5

3.0

2.4

Netherlands

4.2

3.0

6.9

1.4

Belgium

1.0

1.9

8.1

1.2

-2.4

5.7

8.6

3.6

Luxembourg

1

Sources: Eurostat; 1GfK; 2no valid sources available

The retail trade in Germany fared very positively during the coronavirus crisis, rising by 4.8 per cent.
In particular, online retail and the food retail sector posted significant growth, while many retailers in
inner cities – especially in the textile sector – struggled with steeply declining revenue. According to
GfK, the food retail sector recorded nominal revenue growth of 11.9 per cent (FMCGs excl. non-food)
and according to Nielsen/Trade Dimension an increase of 6.4 per cent. In that context, the REWE
division performed exceptionally well in the Retail Germany business segment and is above the
sector trend.
Overall, retail trade in Austria stagnated in 2020 (in nominal terms: 0.0 per cent and in real terms: 0.5 per cent), while the food retail sector achieved nominal revenue growth of 8.6 per cent (6.7 per
cent in real terms), thus significantly outperforming the prior year.
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Retail trade revenue in Italy, which had risen only moderately in 2019, declined by 8.0 per cent in
both nominal and real terms in 2020 due to the coronavirus crisis. Revenue in the food retail sector
increased in nominal terms by 3.1 per cent (in real terms: 1.6 per cent) and was thus up year on year,
although the increase in revenue was more moderate than in many other countries, since a
significant part of revenue in Italy is generated from tourists.
Retail trade in the Eastern European countries in which the REWE Group operates was also impacted
by the coronavirus crisis. While retail trade managed to generate nominal revenue growth in every
country – with the exception of Bulgaria (in nominal terms: -10.1 per cent) and Croatia (nominal: -4.5
per cent) –, in real terms, Bulgaria, Croatia, Slovakia and the Czech Republic recorded declining retail
trade revenue. In every country, retail trade revenue was down year on year, and in some instances
by significant amounts. In nominal terms, the food retail sector in Lithuania, Romania, Slovakia,
Hungary and the Czech Republic recorded rising revenue, while revenue in the food retail sector fell
in nominal terms in Bulgaria by 6.0 per cent and stagnated in Croatia, as a significant share of
revenue there is generated at markets that were temporarily closed and with tourists beeing absent
due to the pandemic.
Retail trade revenue in Spain decreased by 7.6 per cent in 2020 due to the pandemic (-6.6 per cent in
real terms). Revenue in the food retail sector rose in nominal terms by 3.0 per cent (in real terms: 0.8
per cent), although this increase was moderate in comparison to other countries since the Spanish
food retail sector generates a significant part of the revenue from tourists.
In the Benelux countries, revenue from retail trade developed very different, both in nominal and in
real terms: while the Netherlands achieved a significant increase, revenue decreased in Luxembourg.
Revenue in the food retail sector rose sharply in all three countries in nominal as well as in real
terms, although the trend in the Netherlands was weaker than in Belgium and Luxembourg.

Travel and Tourism
Although the year got off to a good start, the German market for tour operators experienced a
dramatic drop in 2020, falling by 64.7 per cent to 12.5 billion euros (previous year: 35.4 billion euros),
and was thus unable to continue on with the solid profits recorded in previous years. After a positive
start, promising record revenues, the rapid spread of the coronavirus brought this development to a
sudden halt in March.
Border closures, travel warnings and entry bans led to an almost complete standstill in travel and
flight traffic from mid-March to mid-May. There was cause for hope again in the summer, as
individual destinations were open again. Tour operators laid their hopes in the summer on the
Balearic Islands, Canary Islands and Greece, although the Spanish destinations were once again
affected by closures towards the end of the summer. From October onwards, Greece and the other
destinations were closed again, meaning that hardly any flight destinations were available at the end
of the tourism year.
Traditional airline travel operators saw their revenue shrivel by 65.5 per cent overall. Heaviest hit
were non-European Mediterranean destinations (-73.4 per cent), European Mediterranean
destinations (-64.6 per cent), long-haul travel destinations (-61.5 per cent) and European destinations
(-41.7 per cent).
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Tour operator travel made slight gains in market share only with the destination Germany and
cruises; in absolute terms, the trend was negative across the board.
Stationary travel agencies were also affected by closures and short-time work, and recorded a 65.9
per cent overall decline in revenue in 2020. Online travel sales also experienced similarly strong
declines in revenue (-64.6 per cent year on year).
Revenue also declined sharply for product portals (-40.9 per cent) and online direct sales of tourism
service providers (-44.3 per cent), although the decline was weaker than in other segments. They
thus remained on track and are competing more and more with their own distribution channels via
tour operators and travel agencies.
Developments in the various European tour operator markets were rather similar in 2020, showing a
similarly dramatic picture.
The Austrian tour operator sector developed just as negatively as its German counterpart, since over
80 per cent of the tours offered are based on the same product range used by German tour
operators. After a good start to an extraordinarily positive winter for skiing, the sector collapsed in
mid-March. Tour operator sector is expected to decline by more than 70 per cent overall.
The Swiss tour operator sector also recorded a sharp decline in 2020.
The somewhat smaller French tour operator sector also experienced a significant decline.
Aside from the impacts of the pandemic, the British tour operator sector had been suffering since the
previous year from the political uncertainty caused by Brexit, resulting in an above-average decline.
Although certain northern European countries kept their borders open during the pandemic, the
travel sectors were forced to accept massive declines by more than 70 per cent.
The positive trend of prior years was also suddenly interrupted in eastern European countries, with
the travel sector in most countries shrinking dramatically by more than 80 per cent.

DIY Stores
According to information published by the German Association of DIY and Gardening Stores in
Cologne (BHB – Handelsverband Heimwerken, Bauen und Garten e. V.), the DIY retail sector posted
revenue growth of 13.8 per cent to 22.1 billion euros in 2020. Although at the beginning of the
Corona crisis approx. a quarter of the garden and DIY stores in Germany were initially closed
regionally by official order in the course of the lockdown, and were, however, reopened in the course
of April due to their system relevance. The first quarter was the weakest - due to the closures - with a
growth in revenue of 5.5 per cent. The two following quarters led to significant revenue increases
(quarter 2: +22.5 per cent; quarter 3: +13.9 per cent) in the sector, which was caused, among other
reasons, by the partly continuing lockdown in many retail sectors, mobility restrictions and an
increasing "homing effect". The fourth quarter (revenue +9.4 per cent) was marked by a renewed
lockdown from mid-December, which in some places had already been preceded by partial closures
or access restrictions (lockdown "light"). The conditions which applied and continue to do so pose
staffing, financial, and in particular logistical challenges for the sector: In particular, the at times
significant delays on import routes from Asia and border closures rendered the flow of goods into the
markets more difficult during the first half of the year. In reaction to the measures imposed to
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contain the pandemic in 2020, customers took on an increasing amount of redecorating projects,
renovations and repairs, and also invested in their gardens and balconies.
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Performance
Please note: The matters described below limit the comparability of figures for the current reporting
period with those for the previous year:
A number of companies were acquired during the financial year. The first-time consolidation in
particular of Lekkerland AG, Vienna(Austria), as well as Lekkerland AG & Co. KG, Frechen,
(hereinafter: the Lekkerland Group), Michael Brücken Kaufpark GmbH & Co. OHG, Hagen, and
Michael Brücken Kaufpark Verwaltungs GmbH, Hagen, (hereinafter: Michael Brücken Kaufpark) and
Cestovní kancelář FISCHER a.s., Prague (Czech Republic), as well as CKF Facility s.r.o., Prague (Czech
Republic, hereinafter: the Fischer Group), affect the comparability of figures. In the context of the
acquisition of the Lekkerland Group, the Group introduced a new "Convenience" business segment.
As of 1 January 2020 this business area also included the REWE To Go unit, which had until then been
part of the Retail Germany business segment.
By contract dated September 9, 2020, all shares in BILLA Ukraine were sold to UAB CONSUL TRADE
HOUSE, Vilnius (Lithuania), effective November 30, 2020. In accordance with the regulations of IFRS
5, the prior period amounts in the income statement were adjusted so that the following remarks on
the results of operations for the financial year and the previous year refer only to the continuing
operations. The income and expenses allocable to the discontinued operations are presented in a
separate line in the income statement. Please also refer to our statements in note 3 "Consolidation –
Divestitures" in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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1.

COMPARISON OF THE FORECAST REPORTED IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Below, we indicate the extent to which the most significant financial performance indicators,
revenue and internal EBITA1 as forecast in the 2019 management report and – to the extent not
available – the internal forecast, were achieved in the fiscal year.
The Group's revenue performance met expectations despite the different developments in the
business segments.
Performance in 2020 was shaped primarily by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic.
At the Group level, internal EBITA developed better than had been forecast for 2020. This positive
trend was mainly driven by the activities in the food retail sector and the DIY store segment, while
Travel and Tourism reported a decline.
Overall, the 2020 business year was satisfactory despite the impact of the Corona crisis.
Revenue in the Retail Germany business segment increased as compared to the budget and
exceeded the projected expectations. This was attributable primarily to the change in consumer
behaviour in reaction to the coronavirus crisis.
Thanks to increased revenue, the Retail Germany business segment's internal EBITA exceeded the
budget projections both in the PENNY division as well as in the REWE division.
The revenue trend of the Retail International business segment was below budgeted expectations.
The Full-Range stores in Austria more than met expectations, while the cash & carry segment and the
CEE Full-Range stores were not able to fully meet expectations.
PENNY International reported good revenue development in every country and exceeded
expectations.
The internal EBITA of the Retail International business segment was above budgeted expectations.
PENNY and the Full-Range stores exceeded their internal EBITA target. The Full-Range stores segment
in eastern Europe also more than met expectations.
Despite the difficult situation in the food product ranges, the Convenience business generally
exceeded expectations in revenue. Thanks to good revenue figures, the EBITA target was also more
than met.
The development of the Travel and Tourism business segment was impacted mainly by the travel
restrictions imposed in the wake of the coronavirus pandemic. Declines in revenue led to a significant
budget miss.. Despite drastic cost cutting measures, the EBITA target was not achieved due to
difficult development of revenue and gross profit.
The DIY Stores business segment recorded revenue greater than forecasted. The positive revenue
and gross profit trend enabled the segment to exceed its EBITA target.

1

For a definition of internal EBITA, please see section 4 "Performance Indicators"
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Net financial debt increased by a lower amount in 2020 than expected. This was due mainly to the
positive comprehensive income figure, lower investments and lower tax payments than originally
planned.

2.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue Development
in million €

2020

Change in
absolute figures

2019

Change in %

Retail Germany

34,737.5

32,317.2

2,420.3

7.5

Retail International

15,877.1

15,209.1

668.0

4.4

Convenience

13,083.8

0.0

13,083.8

-

DIY Stores

2,656.3

2,214.8

441.5

19.9

Travel and Tourism

1,296.2

4,958.3

-3,662.1

-73.9

578.4

585.3

-6.9

-1.2

68,229.3

55,284.7

12,944.6

23.4

Other
Total

Revenue increased by a total of 23.4 per cent in 2020, not least due to the first-time consolidation of
the Lekkerland Group.
The highest-volume business segment, Retail Germany, recorded a 7.5 per cent increase in revenue.
The positive revenue trend was driven in particular by the performance of the REWE and PENNY
stores and the wholesale business, mainly due to a change in consumer behaviour in the wake of the
coronavirus crisis. The positive performance of the wholesale business, which primarily comprises
supplying the REWE partner stores, also reflected the organic growth generated by REWE partner
stores. Further increases in revenue resulted from Michael Brücken Kaufpark, which was considered
in the consolidated financial statements for the first time in the financial year. The REWE Ecommerce business unit also recorded a sharp increase in revenue due to the increased use of
REWE's delivery service. In addition, the revenue from the Digital business unit has been allocated to
the Retail Germany business segment since this financial year. By contrast, the revenue from the
REWE To Go stores were reported under the Convenience business segment for the first time.
The Retail International business segment, with revenue of 15.9 billion euros, is the second-largest
business segment in the Group. The 4.4 per cent increase in revenue (6.1 per cent adjusted for
currency translation effects) was due primarily to PENNY International and the Full-Range stores
segment in Austria. PENNY International benefited in particular from the change in consumer
behaviour due to the coronavirus crisis, recording significant increases in revenue in every country.
The Austrian Full-Range Stores segment also reported a continued positive revenue trend, which was
attributable mainly to food retail. By contrast, revenue declined in the Full-Range Stores segment for
central and eastern Europe. The negative revenue trend was caused primarily by the decrease in
revenue in Russia, which could not be fully compensated by increases in the Czech Republic and
Slovakia.
The Convenience business segment formed in 2020 reported revenue of 12.1 billion euros generated
by the Lekkerland Group, which was consolidated for the first time as at 1 January 2020, and 1.0
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billion euros generated by the REWE To Go stores, which in the previous year had been reported in
the Retail Germany business segment.
The Travel and Tourism business segment generated consolidated revenue of 1.3 billion euros
(brokered travel revenue of 1.5 billion euros), representing a 73.9 per cent decline as compared to
the previous year. This sharp decline was attributable to the drastic travel restrictions imposed in
response to the coronavirus pandemic and the persistent uncertainty among the population.
The DIY Stores business segment recorded a 19.9 per cent increase in revenue and was thus
significantly higher than the sector trend. The increase in revenue at DIY stores was mainly driven by
the positive performance of the retail stores, due particularly to the increased demand for gardening
and DIY products in the context of the coronavirus crisis. Furthermore, specific marketing activities
also had a positive impact on revenue.

Stores and Sales Areas
At the end of the year, the Group's business segments operated 9,459 retail outlets with a total sales
area of 9.2 million square metres.
Number of stores

31 Dec. 2020

Change in
absolute figures

31 Dec. 2019

Change in %

Retail Germany

3,872

3,929

-57

-1.5

Retail International

4,480

4,457

23

0.5

Travel and Tourism

809

792

17

2.1

DIY Stores

281

285

-4

-1.4

17

0

17

-

9,459

9,463

-4

0.0

Convenience
Total

Sales area in m² *

31 Dec. 2020

Change in
absolute figures

31 Dec. 2019

Change in %

Retail Germany

4,224,137

4,225,113

-976

Retail International

3,099,385

3,078,107

21,278

0.7

DIY Stores

1,891,761

1,906,928

-15,167

-0.8

3,009

0

3,009

-

9,218,292

9,210,148

8,144

0.1

Convenience
Total
* No sales area is calculated in Travel and Tourism.
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0.0

Results
in million €

2020

Revenue

Change in
absolute figures

2019

Change in %

68,229.3

55,284.7

12,944.6

Cost of materials, incl. changes in inventories

-52,850.6

-41,477.0

-11,373.6

27.4

Gross profit

15,378.7

13,807.7

1,571.0

11.4

Gross profit ratio

23.4

22.5%

25.0%

4,368.2

4,063.5

304.7

7.5

-3,145.7

-3,153.5

7.8

0.2

EBITA

1,222.5

910.0

312.5

34.3

For information: internal EBITA*

1,013.6

869.0

144.6

16.6

-2.6

0.0

-2.6

0.0

1,219.9

910.0

309.9

34.1

-493.1

-538.6

45.5

8.4

726.8

371.4

355.4

95.7

-281.3

135.2

-416.5

< -100

445.5

506.6

-61.1

-12.1

-30.2

0.3

-30.5

< -100

415.3

506.9

-91.6

-18.1

EBITDA
Depreciation, amortisation/reversals of impairment losses and impairments
(excl. goodwill)

Goodwill impairments
EBIT
Financial result
EBT
Taxes on income
Results from continuing operations
Results from discontinued operations
EAT/net income for the year
* For the reconciliation please see section 4 "Performance Indicators" on page 27

EBITDA increased by 304.7 million euros. This change was due to a significant increase in gross profit
(+1,571.0 million euros), which was offset by a reduction in other operating income (-193.9 million
euros, excluding reversals of impairment losses) and an increase in personnel expenses (+624.0
million euros) and other operating expenses (+448.4 million euros). Since the increase in the cost of
materials exceeded the rise of revenues, the gross profit margin fell to 22.5 per cent (previous year:
25.0 per cent). Adjusted for the new Convenience business segment the gross profit margin is 26.7
per cent.
The decrease in other operating income was due mainly to a reduction in income from the disposal
of non-current assets and a decrease in miscellaneous other operating income. Rental income
developed the contrary way.
The income from the disposal of non-current assets resulted from the sale of the Donaustadt store
and the sale of two stores in the Retail International business segment. In the previous year, that
item consisted essentially of income from the sale of shares in the Retail Germany and Travel and
Tourism business segments.
In the previous year, miscellaneous other operating income included income in connection with the
acquisition of shares in RZAG and income from the reversal of negative goodwill from the first-time
consolidation of four companies.
Rental income increased primarily in connection with leasing to REWE partner stores in the Retail
Germany business segment due to the increased number of partner stores as well as due to an
increase in sales-based rents.
The change in other operating expenses was caused by increased expenses for the vehicle fleet and
freight, maintenance and consumables, third-party services, expenses from exchange rate changes
and miscellaneous other operating expenses.
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The increase in expenses for the vehicle fleet and freight was due to the new Convenience business
segment because of the first-time consolidation of the Lekkerland Group, and due to the Retail
Germany business segment as a result of increased external logistics servicescaused by the increased
volume of business.
The increase in expenses for maintenance and consumables related mainly to the Retail Germany
business segment and was caused by structural changes made in the course of modernisation work.
The increase in expenses for third-party services resulted primarily to the first-time consolidation of
the Lekkerland Group in the Convenience business segment and related mainly to expenses for
external personnel and IT services.
The change in expenses from exchange rate changes related primarily to increased currency
translation losses incurred by the Retail International business segment and increased expenses in
connection with stand-alone derivatives in the Travel and Tourism business segment.
The change in miscellaneous other operating expenses resulted from an increase in write-downs on
financial assets in the Travel and Tourism business segment, among other reasons.
The increase in personnel expenses by 8.4 per cent is mainly due to the new Convenience business
segment and the Retail Germany business segment. In the Retail Germany business segment, the
first-time consolidation of Michael Brücken Kaufpark and corona-related influences - such as bonuses
for store employees, but also increased sales-related staff deployment - led to the rise in personnel
costs.. In addition, the consolidation in full of the RZAG companies, which were consolidated for the
first time as at 1 May 2019, as well as wage and salary rises also increased this line item. By contrast,
personnel expenses in the Travel and Tourism business segment declined, essentially as a result of
short-time work.
EBITA was 1,222.5 million euros in 2020, 312.5 million euros higher than in the previous year.
The financial result improved by 45.5 million euros to -493.1 million euros (previous year: -538.6
million euros). This was due to a 60.7 million euro increase in the result from companies accounted
for using the equity method, a 15.7 million euro improvement in the results from the measurement
of derivative financial instruments and a 7.2 million euro increase in other financial income. The
interest result trended in the opposite direction: The 38.1 million euro decline was due mainly to a
decrease in interest income from taxes and increased interest expenses in connection with leases.
Taxes on income resulted in an expense of 281.3 million euros (previous year: 135.2 million euro
income). This amount consists of a current tax expense of 353.1 million euros (previous year:
61.6 million euros) as well as deferred tax income of 71.8 million euros (previous year: 196.8 million
euros). The current tax expense includes income of 7.2 million euros (previous year: 115.1 million
euros) from taxes for previous years.

3.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND NET ASSETS

Financial Position
The Group essentially has access to the following debt capital funds currently available:
Page 21

Debt capital funds
in million €

31 Dec. 2020

31 Dec. 2019

Maturity

Syndicated loan

2,000.0

Syndicated loan

1,000.0

Promissory note loan

1,000.0

1,000.0 between 28 Feb. 2021 and 28 Feb. 2028

Promissory note loan

537.0

537.0 between 20 Dec. 2022 and 20 Dec. 2029

Promissory note loan

175.0

175.0 2 Sep. 2024

US private placement

30.0

Total

4,742.0

2,000.0 3 Dec. 2025
0.0 7 Jul. 2021

0.0 15 Aug. 2027
3,712.0

The Group has access to a 2.0 billion euro syndicated loan that includes credit lines of 500.0 million
euros. As of the reporting date, there were no drawdowns on either the syndicated loan (previous
year: drawdown of 400.0 million euros) or the included lines of credit (previous year: drawdown of
14.8 million euros).
By virtue of the agreement dated 7 April 2020, the Group entered into a further syndicated loan
agreement with a volume of 1.0 billion euros and a 15-month term; this loan was not drawn down as
at the reporting date. In addition, there are other bilateral lines of credit between individual
companies and banks.
The US private placement resulted for the Lekkerland Group, acquired in 2020.
Internal cash pooling is aimed at reducing the amount of debt financing and at optimising cash and
capital investments. Cash pooling allows the use of individual companies' excess liquidity in the
Group for internal financing.
Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement shows changes in cash and cash equivalents less overdraft facilities during
the financial year. A distinction is drawn between changes resulting from operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities.
Change in cash and cash equivalents
in million €

2020

Cash funds at beginning of period

2019
557.6

626.7

Cash flows from operating activities, continuing operations

3,681.1

3,252.3

Cash flows from investing activities, continuing operations

-1,833.5

-2,381.6

Cash flows from financing activities, continuing operations

-1,708.3

-945.7

139.3

-75.0

Cash flows from continuing operations
Cash flows from operating activities, discontinued operations

8.4

20.1

Cash flows from investing activities, discontinued operations

12.1

-10.8

Cash flows from financing activities, discontinued operations

-2.0

-5.6

Cash flows from discontinued operations

18.5

3.7

0.2

0.0

Change in cash funds related to changes in the scope of consolidation
Currency translation differences
Cash funds at end of period
Cash funds at the end of the period, discontinued operations
Cash funds at the end of the period, continuing operations
of which: cash and cash equivalents
of which: bank overdrafts

-6.1

2.2

709.5

557.6

0.0

1.8

709.5

555.8

709.5

567.0

0.0

-9.4

Further explanations can be found in note 38 "Cash Flow Statement" in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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In addition, further information on the currency and interest structure is contained in note 40
"Financial Risk Management".

Net Assets
Assets

Total assets increased in the financial year by 2,271.7 million euros to 33,436.5 million euros.
The increase in fixed assets was due mainly to additions amounting to 1,975.9 million euros (previous
year: 1,360.1 million euros) resulting from the recognition of right-of-use assets for real estate; in
addition, the Group invested 1,894.4 million euros (previous year: 1,741.2 million euros) in intangible
assets and in property, plant and equipment. The capital expenditures related primarily to the
expansion and modernisation of the existing store network and the warehouse locations and
production companies. In addition, intangible assets increased as a result of the acquisitions of the
Lekkerland Group and the Fischer Group: These acquisitions resulted in an increase in recognised
goodwill, customer relationships and private labels. Reductions in non-current assets were primarily
caused by disposals, impairments, depreciation and amortisation.
Internally generated intangible assets in use amounting to 84.6 million euros are presented in the
financial year (previous year: 67.6 million euros). In addition, there are internally generated
intangible assets still in development. The internally generated intangible assets primarily concern
software products. In addition, research and development costs amounting to 72.1 million euros
were incurred (previous year: 61.8 million euros) that were recognised as expenses.
The change in other non-current assets was due mainly to the increase in companies accounted for
using the equity method (+68.2 million euros) and deferred tax assets (+64.4 million euros), which
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was partly offset by a decrease in other financial assets (-31.7 million euros). The increase in
companies accounted for using the equity method was attributable mainly to the results from the
partnership model. The increase in deferred tax assets resulted primarily from the Other business
segment. The decline in non-current other financial assets was mainly due to reductions in loans to
associates in the Retail Germany business segment.
Inventories increased mainly due to an increase in finished goods and merchandise. The change
resulted primarily from the Convenience business segment due to the first-time consolidation of the
Lekkerland Group. This was offset by the change in work in progress, primarily in the Travel and
Tourism business segment, which reported a steep decline in bookings due to the pandemic.
The increase in other current assets is primarily attributable to an increase in trade receivables
(+489.7 million euros), other financial assets (+252.5 million euros) and cash and cash equivalents
(+142.5 million euros). This was offset by a 764.5 million euro decrease in other assets and a
117.7 million euro decrease in current income tax assets. The increase in trade receivables resulted
primarily from the Convenience business segment, due to the first-time consolidation of the
Lekkerland Group and the Retail Germany business segment, in which the receivables from
associates increased. With respect to current other financial assets, claims from supplier
compensation in particular increased, particularly in the Retail Germany business segment and – due
to the first-time consolidation of the Lekkerland Group – in the Convenience business segment. In
the previous year, current other assets included a partial payment for the acquisition of the
Lekkerland Group. In addition, interest on trade tax refunds and deferred commissions decreased in
the Travel and Tourism business segment. The current income tax assets declined in the Travel and
Tourism business segment in particular. With respect to changes in cash and cash equivalents, please
refer to our explanations in relation to the financial position.
Non-current assets held for sale decreased by 0.4 million euros. This change resulted from the
reclassification of assets held in the "toom beverage markets" segment of REWE Markt GmbH,
Cologne, in the Retail Germany business segment, which is offset by an opposite effect due to
properties in Croatia and Austria in the Retail International business segment: the Donaustadt
location reported in the previous year was also disposed of during the reporting period, as were the
two stores in the Czech Republic.
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Equity and Liabilities

The balance sheet shows equity of 7,555.0 million euros as at 31 December 2020 (previous year:
7,278.2 million euros), which corresponds to an equity ratio of 22.6 per cent (previous year: 23.4 per
cent). The return on equity of continuing operations was 6.1 per cent (previous year: 7.6 per cent).
Retained earnings increased by 321.8 million euros to 6,305.0 million euros. Substantial components
of this change were the net income generated for the financial year attributable to the shareholders
of the parent in the amount of 391.1 million euros (previous year: 528.4 million euros). Retained
earnings were reduced by a 69.5 million euro loss on the remeasurement of defined benefit pension
commitments, including the corresponding deferred taxes (previous year: loss of 86.3 million euros).
The 47.2 million euro decrease in other reserves to -131.4 million euros resulted primarily from the
reserve for currency translation.
The change in non-current liabilities was due to the increase in non-current other financial liabilities
(+632.0 million euros), non-current liabilities from employee benefits (+117.3 million euros), noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (+22.8 million euros), non-current other liabilities (+16.7 million euros)
and non-current other provisions (+16.2 million euros). The increase in non-current other financial
liabilities was due mainly to an increase in lease liabilities, among other reasons resulting from the
first-time consolidation of the Lekkerland Group and Michael Brücken Kaufpark. In addition,
increased non-current liabilities to banks due to real estate loans and loans to associates in the Retail
Germany business segment as well as liabilities from other loans, including in the Other business
segment, resulted in the increase in non-current other financial liabilities. The increase in noncurrent liabilities from employee benefits was due mainly to an increase in non-current provisions for
pension obligations: In particular, decreased interest and the first-time consolidation of the
Lekkerland Group caused the increase. In addition, the non-current liabilities from termination
benefits rose in the Convenience and Travel and Tourism business segments. The increase in nonPage 25

current other liabilities resulted mainly from the Retail Germany business segment. The increase in
non-current other provisions related primarily to restoration obligations and resulted above all from
the Retail Germany business segment.
The increase in trade payables primarily concerned the first-time consolidation of the Lekkerland
Group in addition to reporting date-related changes.
The increase in current liabilities was due to the increase in current income tax liabilities (+343.8
million euros), current other provisions (+241.5 million euros) and current liabilities from employee
benefits (+56.2 million euros). Current income tax liabilities increased primarily in the Other business
segment. Under current other provisions, provisions for compensation to customers, particularly in
the Retail Germany business segment, increased due to increased revenue with REWE partners, as
well as in the Convenience business segment due to the first-time consolidation of the Lekkerland
Group. In addition, miscellaneous other provisions increased in the two business segments. Current
liabilities from employee benefits increased in the Retail Germany business segment in particular due
to the increase in liabilities from annual bonus payments due to the positive development of
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation. Liabilities from termination benefits
increased in the Travel and Tourism business segment.
This was partly offset by current other liabilities (-302.5 million euros) and current other financial
liabilities (-57.4 million euros). The decrease in other liabilities was due mainly to a sharp decline in
prepayments received on account of orders and liabilities from advance travel services in the Travel
and Tourism business segment due to the pandemic and was offset partially by liabilities from
vouchers in said business segment. An increasing effect on that itemresulted from a rise in liabilities
from customer loyalty programmes in the Retail Germany and Retail International business
segments. Under current other financial liabilities, liabilities to banks fell significantly: The lines of
credit drawn down in the previous year were not utilised during the financial year. This was offset in
part by the current lease liabilities, which increased in particular in the Retail Germany business
segment due in part to the first-time consolidation of Michael Brücken Kaufpark, as well as in the
Convenience business segment due to the first-time consolidation of the Lekkerland Group. In
addition, liabilities to associates increased in the Retail Germany and Other business segments, in
which liabilities from other loans also increased.
The liabilities arising in connection with non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
increased by 1.8 million euros. The change resulted from the Retail Germany business segment. This
was caused by the reclassification of liabilities held by the "toom beverage markets" segment of
REWE Markt GmbH.
There were also contingent liabilities of 590.3 million euros as at the balance sheet date (previous
year: 753.1 million euros) which mainly related to payment guarantees to financial institutions and
payment guarantees for merchandise liabilities. In addition, other financial obligations amounting to
224.4 million euros (previous year: 114.8 million euros) were recorded for purchase commitments in
property, plant and equipment and amounting to 76.2 million euros (previous year: 252.8 million
euros) in the Travel and Tourism business segment towards service providers.
Significant events after the end of the reporting period are described under note 43 "Events after the
Balance Sheet Date" in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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4.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial Performance Indicators
The most significant performance indicators of the Group's operating units are revenue and (internal)
EBITA. Given that the contribution margin is a key instrument for our stores in managing the
operating business, that we need the clearest possible insight into the costs actually incurred, and
that rents constitute a material cost item for stores, the presentation must be adjusted for the
effects of IFRS 16. The same applies to all effects that are not connected with managing the
operating business. Consequently, the effects that materially impact earnings development at an
operating level but that could also lead to mismanagement in the assessment are presented on an
internal basis below EBITA. The EBITA that is relevant for management purposes is derived by
adjusting the external figures for effects arising from:
•
•
•
•
•

IFRS 16: Leases,
provisions for onerous contracts,
reversals of impairment losses on non-current assets,
impairment (excluding goodwill/right-of-use assets), and
net gains/losses on derivatives used for currency hedging.

The reconciliation of internal key figures to external key figures is presented below:
in million €

2020

EBITA (internal definition)

Change in
absolute figures

2019

Change in %

1,013.6

869.0

144.6

16.6

-99.0

-154.0

55.0

-35.7

Reversals of impairment losses (excl. right-of-use assets)

23.2

13.0

10.2

78.5

Net gains/losses on derivatives used for currency hedging

-2.5

-0.5

-2.0

< -100

Impairment excl. goodwill/right-of-use assets

Effects IFRS16 Leases
Capitalisation right-of-use assets (lease expense/advance travel services)
Depreciation right-of-use assets
Impairment right-of-use assets
Reversals of impairment losses of right-of-use assets
Other income/expenses
EBITA (external definition)
Goodwill impairments
EBIT

2,051.3

1,978.2

73.1

3.7

-1,542.7

-1,599.9

57.2

-3.6

-287.0

-287.9

0.9

-0.3

94.0

122.8

-28.8

-23.5

-28.4

-30.7

2.3

-7.5

1,222.5

910.0

312.5

34.3

2.6

0.0

2.6

0.0

1,219.9

910.0

309.9

34.1

At the Group level, net financial debt represents a further key indicator.
The 385.1 million euro increase in net financial debt in 2020 resulted mainly from an increase in lease
liabilities (+581.0 million euros), the increase in liabilities from other loans (+172.5 million euros) and
liabilities to associates (+104.9 million euros), which was offset in part by reduced liabilities to banks
(-348.6 million euros) and the increase in cash and cash equivalents (+142.5 million euros).
in million €

31 Dec. 2020

Financial liabilities*

13,068.4

Cash and cash equivalents
Net financial debt
*Included under other financial liabilities.
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31 Dec. 2019
12,540.8

-709.5

-567.0

12,358.9

11,973.8

Non-financial Performance Indicators
Non-financial performance indicators are not used for internal management control. The contents of
this section and its subsections are non-audited, voluntary contents that have been critically read by
the auditor.

Employees
On an annual average, the REWE combine had 256,162 employees in 2020 (previous year: 241,691),
of which 7,137 (previous year: 6,503) were trainees.
The increased headcount is mainly attributable to the acquisition of the Lekkerland Group and of
Michael Brücken Kaufpark.
As an international trading and tourism group we rely on qualified employees. So that we continue to
be considered an attractive employer in the competition for qualified employees, the REWE Group
makes targeted investments in its current and future employees. The following action areas play a
central role:

Values and culture
The REWE Group wants long-term commitments from its employees and offers them a motivating
work environment. This includes interesting further training and career opportunities, fair work
conditions, attractive social benefits and offers that are adapted to the different phases of the
employee's life. Fair work environments are based on valuing diversity and a commitment to equal
opportunity – these are core values for the REWE Group's corporate culture. The appreciation of
employees through appropriate compensation with attractive additional benefits (such as our
employee discount) is also a material component of a fair work environment.

Training and professional development
The REWE Group offers school leavers initial vocational training in sales and distribution, logistics and
administration. Apprentices of REWE Markt GmbH who excel are guaranteed full-time, permanent
positions after completion of their apprenticeship. The opportunities on offer for REWE-employees
are rounded out by integrated degree programmes at Reutlingen University and vocational Master's
courses for A-levels.
In order to promote the potential and individual development of all employees in the best manner
possible, the REWE Group continuously expands its personnel development measures and offers all
its employees and executives an extensive offering of internal further and continuing education. As
part of this effort, the Company endeavours to recruit as many as possible specialists and managers
from its own ranks and to retain qualified and motivated employees long-term. In addition to
numerous classroom-based courses, the opportunities offered by digitalisation with online learning
content and virtual training sessions for our employees at the central locations, in the markets and at
the logistics locations are also being used and further expanded.
In addition to numerous classroom training sessions, the opportunities offered by digitalisation with
online learning content and virtual training sessions for our employees at the central locations, in the
markets and at the logistics locations are also being used and further expanded.
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The development of employees across all hierarchical levels and sales divisions is initiated annually as
part of our systematic career and succession planning. In a continuous dialogue between managers
and employees, the focus is on feedback on performance on the one hand, and on the individual
development of the employee on the other.

Health and safety
Occupational safety and health management are important elements of the REWE Group's internal
social policy. They help it fulfil its corporate responsibility and support employees in taking personal
responsibility for their health and safety. At the same time, we are making efforts to continuously
improve working conditions.
Be it ergonomic work stations or accident prevention, the safety and health of our employees has
thehighest priority for us. We assist the responsible managers in preparing their risk assessments for
the purpose of determining the physical and mental demands of the job, and provide them with
advice on setting up work stations. In addition, we place great value on the prevention of violence as
well as reducing musculoskeletal strain by optimising employees' workplace habits (e.g., when lifting,
carrying, pushing, sitting). Following the principle "demand and promote", in addition to mandatory
health and safety training we offer our employees various (online) programmes on promoting a
healthy lifestyle and mitigating environmental risk factors. Moreover, we work closely with the
occupational health service to address the topic of psychological health (e.g., consultations or a
telephone hotline for psychosocial advice). Health management also takes advantage of the
opportunities offered by digitalisation to enable even more employees to take part in these activities
than before. The REWE Group offers all employees a custom online portal with health-promotion
content, and trains specific individuals to disseminate information on these topics.

Work-life balance
Be it adult care for family members or childcare: we help our employees to balance their careers and
families by offering family-oriented services which fit with each stage of life.
A family-friendly HR policy is important to the REWE Group in order to gain and retain employees.
That is why we offer on-site kindergartens at certain locations and for all employees the national
child and adult care services in cooperation with awo lifebalance GmbH, for example. A good worklife
balance is becoming a decisive factor for many people when selecting an employer. That is why many
divisions of the REWE Group have been certified by undergoing the "career and family" audit by
berufundfamilie Service GmbH. In total, more than 150,000 employees in Germany are covered by
the certification. Numerous models are used in the REWE Group that allow employees to organise
their work individually and flexibly, for instance taking time off for a sabbatical.
Whether employees themselves are suffering from severe illness, if they have lost a loved one, if
they have a family member requiring care or are facing other private issues: personal problems can
cause considerable stress and have a significant impact on an employee's working life. The REWE
Group supports the "LoS!" initiative to offer employees quick and practical assistance in critical life
situations. In combination with independently developed guidance, training specific individuals to
disseminate information on LoS! and act as guides for employees experiencing difficulties ensures
that help can quickly reach those who find themselves in problem situations.
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Sustainability
Sustainability at the REWE Group is firmly anchored in both the Company's strategy and the
corporate organisation. The Chairman of the Management Board is responsible for setting the
sustainability strategy of the entire REWE Group.
Four strategic pillars – "Green Products", "Energy, Climate and the Environment", "Employees" and
"Social Involvement" – were introduced in 2008 to implement the sustainability strategy. Within
these pillars, the Company has identified action areas that cover all of the issues relevant to the
REWE Group.
In 2016, a strategic process was implemented by the food retail segment in Germany and at DER
Touristik to review the organisation and focus of the REWE Group's commitment to sustainability,
and to adapt this where necessary. The aim was to better integrate activities into the sales lines'
existing business processes in order to anchor sustainability even more firmly in the Company. As
part of the strategy process at DER Touristik, the five following pillars of sustainability were
redefined: "Environment and Nature", "Customers and Products", "National Partners", "Employees"
and "Social Involvement". The four pillars of sustainability for the food retail sector in Germany were
confirmed.

a) Green Products
The goal of the "Green Products" pillar is to make more sustainable product ranges available and to
offer these to consumers at the stores. A holistic approach to the supply chain is therefore a core
element and integral part of the purchasing processes. In terms of content the activities in the
"Green Products" pillar are "People", "Animals", "Environment" and "Nutrition".
The REWE Group consistently follows its objective of increasing the share of sustainable store brands
and brand-name products by using the PRO PLANET label for store brand products by expanding the
organic product line and through its product line of regional products as well as various raw
materials-related guidelines and its own projects for more sustainable supply chains.

b) Energy, Climate and the Environment
Three action areas have been identified in the "Energy, Climate and the Environment" pillar: "Energy
efficiency", "Climate-relevant emissions" and "Conservation of resources". By 2022, the REWE Group
aims to reduce greenhouse gas emissions per square metre of sales area by half compared to 2006
levels. The 2019 carbon footprint report shows that a reduction of 49.0 per cent has already been
achieved. In addition, electricity consumption per square metre of sales area and the coolant-related
greenhouse gas emissions per square metre of sales area will be reduced.

c) Employees
The satisfaction and performance capability of employees are a core element of the REWE Group's
strategic human resources management. Accordingly, the following action areas have been identified
for the "Employees" pillar: "Values and Culture", "Training and professional growth", "Health and
safety", "Job and phases of life" and "Diversity and equal opportunity".
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Various initiatives have been implemented in all action areas in order to increase employee
satisfaction and dedication. Examples include activities to support health and wellbeing in the
workplace, in particular in distribution and logistics, ensuring workplace health and safety, and
promoting employees across all levels of the Group's hierarchy and sales lines. Further focus areas
are promoting diversity in the context of integration and inclusion and stepping up efforts to increase
the number of female executives. Measures for a better work life balance such as part-time models
or flexible working are being systematically expanded.

d) Social Involvement
As a major corporate group and in its cooperative tradition, the REWE Group feels obligated to be
engaged socially and supports numerous national and international social projects. The action areas
under the "Social Involvement" pillar are: "Concious diets and exercise", "Opportunities for children
and adolescents", "Vigilant approach to food" and "Biodiversity and environmental protection".
One commitment of particular significance to the REWE Group is to support local food bank
initiatives. For instance, for more than 25 years now, the Company has been one of the sponsors of
more than 940 "Tafel" food banks across Germany and a member of the Tafel Deutschland e.V.

Sustainability Activities
The core of the REWE Group's sustainability activities is the active integration and sensitisation of all
relevant stakeholder groups, consumers in particular. The sales lines oversee customer relations, for
instance by providing information in the form of weekly flyers, on its website or as part of
Sustainability-related initiatives.
An exceptional example in 2020 for raising customer awareness was the opening of the interactive
sustainability experience market "PENNY Grüner Weg". There, 20 stations allow customers to
interactively see and experience the company's most important sustainability topics.
As an internationally active group, REWE Group procures a large number of products every day from
all over the world via supply chains. Particularly in the supply chain levels of raw material cultivation
and processing, the cooperative trading and travel company has been working intensively for years
to ensure that there is no room for disregard of labour, social and environmental standards. For this
commitment, the cooperation with the association TransFair (Fairtrade Germany) plays an important
role. In 2020, REWE Group was awarded first place in the Fairtrade Awards in the category "Large
and medium-sized trading companies". In addition to the wide range of fairly traded products, this
recognised the conversion of all store brands in Germany to the Fairtrade-raw material seal for cocoa
as well as the project for a physically traceable Fairtrade-orange juice.
These and other activities undertaken by the REWE Group are covered in detail in the REWE Group's
annual sustainability report.
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Risk and Opportunities Report
The Value of Risk Management
As an internationally active retail and tourism group, we are exposed to a wide variety of risks, some
with short reaction times, as part of our business operations.
Risks are uncertain company-external and internal influential factors that impair the potential profit
areas (assets, profit and liquidity) and/or the Group's reputation and thus hinder or threaten to
hinder the realisation of planned goals or may negatively impact further business development. On
the other hand, opportunities are company-external and internal influential factors that create the
potential profit areas (assets, profit and liquidity) and thus positively impact the planned goals or
further business development.
We employ a uniform risk management system throughout the Group to counter this risk potential
and ensure our opportunities potential in the long term. In doing so, we understand risk
management as a continual process that is firmly integrated as a regular step in our operating
practices.
The Group essentially applies four key strategies for managing risks: avoidance, mitigation, transfer
and acceptance.
At the REWE combine, all risks are subject to mandatory management and, to the extent possible,
are mitigated in their effect and probability through operational initiatives. The scope of the related
need for action and the point in time for initiating appropriate actions are based on the urgency
(probability of materializing) as well as the threat potential (potential damage determined from the
monetary, reputational, and legal impact) of the risk. We document and manage existing needs for
action in our risk areas using documented action plans and schedules.

Risk Management Organisation
The general conditions, guidelines and processes for uniform corporate risk management are created
centrally by Corporate Controlling in cooperation with the corporate Governance & Compliance and
Business Administration departments.
Under the Group's prescribed guidelines concerning the defined risk areas, it is the responsibility of
the Group to locally organise the establishment and procedural flow of the operational risk
management process.
Risk managers identify reportable risks early in our risk areas using a bottom-up approach and these
risks are then classified uniformly throughout the Group and managed independently.
Risk checklists in the form of Group recommendations are developed by our corporate departments
and provided to the risk areas regularly in advance of the annual risk inventory to support their risk
identification and analysis. This ensures the Group-wide consideration of possible risk events as seen
by headquarters.
The risk analysis covers a three-year planning horizon, analogous to the period of our mid-term plan.
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Risks with relevant significance for the Group are managed and monitored by selected corporate
departments based on their technical competence. In addition to operational business risks with
significant threat potential, the focus is also on significant risks from finance, compliance, taxes and
financial reporting. The corporate departments discuss and reconcile the varying risk assessments
with the risk areas after the risk inventory has been completed and before the risk report is
prepared.

Our management and supervisory boards are informed of the Group's current risk situation in
standardised form on an annual basis. To that end, the risk managers send risk reports to the Group.
These reports contain risk inventories of relevant individual risks from the risk areas as of a given
closing date. Risks with similar content and causes are subsequently aggregated at the level of the
Group into risk categories and classified with regard to their relevance to the groups based on the
threat potential to our business activities, financial position, financial performance, results of
operations, cash flows and our reputation.

Page 33

The monetary impact represents the overall financial loss within a three-year assessment period
which is expected upon materialisation of the risk, taking into consideration the implemented and
effective measures to counteract those risks.
We measure and manage opportunities as part of our regularly scheduled operational and strategic
planning. Opportunities and risks are not offset at the level of the Group.
In addition, binding provisions were made under which newly identified, significant risks or existing
risks with material effects, changes in their development and high probability of occurrence in the
risk areas must be reported in a timely manner and directly to our management bodies.
As an independent body, the Auditing department assesses the quality and functionality of our risk
management system at regular intervals. Nevertheless, we cannot guarantee with complete certainty
that all relevant risks are recognised early and the controls and processes function in the desired
scope. Human error can never be ruled out completely.

Presentation of Risks
The risk assessment is made based on given or realistically assumable circumstances. Changes in the
risk environment, the initiation of actions and changes to planning approaches result in changes to
the risk portfolio. Therefore, for instance, the image risk type is no longer included in the top risks.
Due to the rampant coronavirus pandemic, the risk type "Catastrophes" has been assigned greater
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weighting in the risk assessment, and features as a top risk for the first time. The risks relating to raw
materials and receivables management have risen in significance and are now also classified as top
risks.

Valuation Risks
Unexpected budget or forecast deviations as well as changes in general economic conditions may
result in having to remeasure assets such as real estate, goodwill and right-of-use assets. This can
materially impact the earnings development of the Group. Changes in input factors can result in
either charges to earnings through impairment write-downs and/or to increases in earnings through
reversals of impairment losses. Regular reviews of the recoverability of assets, the examination and
plausibility check of the mid-term plan as well as monitoring of the current development of earnings
and values give us a current picture of our valuation portfolio and future valuation risks at all times.
Necessary strategic measures for reducing the impairment risk can be taken in a timely manner.

IT and Data Security
Due to the high dependence of trading and tourism processes on IT systems, including of stored data,
the security of these systems represents an important foundation for the Company's success. Risk
gaps will be closed by a high level of expenditures and investments in the security and performance
capability of systems as well as ongoing monitoring of key processes. Furthermore, we use
information events, training courses and work instructions to regularly inform our employees about
material changes relating to data security.
Data security is ensured by the introduction of new, state-of-the art technologies, thus reducing
possible abuse to a minimum. Documenting processes, setting rules and instructions as well as
contractual safeguards form the basis for securing the Company's IT processes and systems.
A residual risk cannot be excluded entirely despite the necessary security measures.

Catastrophes
Past and current developments in connection with the coronavirus pandemic have led to the risk of
pandemic being re-assessed by the business segments and assigned greater weighting in light of its
potential impact.
The emergence and spread of pandemics can have severe financial impacts on the development of
the REWE Group's companies. Restrictions in production, trading and tourism can affect the
individual divisions in different measure. The countries affected by the coronavirus pandemic have
imposed a variety of measures and restrictions in order to contain the pandemic; these measures
and restrictions vary in intensity depending on the respective government's assessment of the
situation. These differences can result in the impacts of the risks stemming from the coronavirus
pandemic being assessed differently by the various national units.
In the tourism sector, regional travel restrictions and travel advisories can bring travel and holiday
activities to a standstill, thereby causing the Company's earnings to deteriorate significantly. Due to
the still-rampant coronavirus pandemic, there is a high degree of uncertainty as to the intensity and
duration of future restrictions and the associated losses of earnings.
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In the retail sector, mandatory lockdowns and restrictions on selling can lead to the loss of revenue
and earnings. The loss of suppliers and service providers can severely limit the ability to deliver
products and services and thus adversely affect the Company's performance and profitability.
Changes in consumer behaviour caused by restrictions can have a positive effect. For instance, the
food retail sector can profit from the reduction in out-of-home consumption and from one-stop
shopping.
By continually monitoring current developments, by complying with and continuing to develop the
prescribed measures, and by implementing sound crisis management, the impacts can be mitigated,
but not prevented. In-depth analyses and assessments of the current situation will help us to run
future simulations, better estimate the impacts and take faster, higher-quality decisions. Based on
efficient and flexible processes and structures, we can better react to changes and thus counteract
the impacts from a loss of earnings.

Raw Materials
In the retail trade, changes in the prices of raw materials materially affect the purchasing prices of
the merchandise to be sold. Prices for raw materials can fluctuate significantly due to market
conditions or statutory requirements. Past experience has shown that increased prices for raw
materials cannot always be passed on to customers in the form of higher prices, and this therefore
represents a risk to earnings.
By contrast, lower prices for raw materials can translate to greater gross profits.
In order to be able to react to changes in prices for raw materials at an early stage, the markets on
which raw materials are sold are monitored continually.

Personnel Risks
Due to the dominance of personnel expenses in the retail business, personnel risks are also a primary
focus of risk reporting. The development of pay scales and non-wage labour costs as well as to an
increased extent the availability of labour are therefore of major importance. In particular,
developments on the labour market are currently showing that risks are intensifying.
Third-party services and work agreements also continue to be a source of potential risk, albeit a less
pronounced one in 2020 than in the previous year thanks to measures taken as part of the risk
assessment. We attempt to further mitigate any risks associated with engaging third-party services
by continually raising the awareness of our executives and employees through training courses,
information events and recommended courses of action.
An optimum recruiting process is essential to ensure that vacancies are filled quickly and with
suitable candidates. Should cost developments be over those previously known or expected, this
results in a greater burden on retail earnings and can therefore weigh down the long-term earnings
development of the Group. Cost increases can be partially compensated for by continually reviewing
our processes and optimising our procedures. This requires strict and consistent cost management.
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Customer Marketing
Customer marketing risks relate primarily to the dissemination and distribution of customer and
product information. Disruptions in the information process or delayed or incorrect customer
information materially affect revenue and earnings development. Spreading the tasks across multiple
vendors and service providers serves to mitigate the risk of dependency and significant
communication disruptions.

Receivables Management
Insolvencies of end customers and suppliers in the retail business can lead to bad debts. In the Travel
and Tourism business segment, prepayments and guarantee payments to hotels and airlines are
subject to risk, although they constitute a common market practice to secure hotel and flight
contingents. Insolvency on the part of hotels and service providers leads to additional potential risks.
These risks are reduced significantly by continually monitoring the creditworthiness of significant
accounts receivable and payable and strict directives on making prepayments.

Price Trend Risks/Competitors
An intensification of the competitive environment can negatively impact price trends and be
contained by initiatives only with difficulty. Negative price developments slow sustainable growth in
revenue and gross profit and lead to profit erosion.
The pressure on prices in the stores is increased by discounters adding brand-name products to their
shelves and in the non-food sector by the continued fierce competition among online retailers. Since
these articles are essentially high revenue items, long-term price reductions on these items have a
significant impact on the development of gross profit.
We are able to react quickly to price adjustments and adapt to the new price situation by monitoring
the competition and prices. Innovative products and brands as well as competitive cost structures
assist us in containing or reducing erosions of gross margins.
It is important for a retail company to recognise market trends early and to develop characteristics
distinguishing it from the competition using new store concepts. Changes in customers' lifestyles
affect their purchasing behaviour and thus the market requirements. Therefore, it is important to
recognise market trends and changes in behaviour early in order to offer the store concepts to
customers that meet their needs. If trends or market changes are identified too late, especially in the
saturated markets, this results in a long-term competitive disadvantage and thus in revenue and
earnings declines.
The growing online business poses new challenges for both over-the-counter retailing and travel and
tourism. The increasing activities in the online retail trade will lead to changes in the retail landscape.
It is therefore particularly important to closely observe and actively follow this trend. For instance,
the REWE combine has continued to strengthen its online activities, particularly in the German food
retail sector. We plan to expand the segment further and take a leading role in online business in the
German food retail sector.
Store concepts and ranges are continually refined, meaning that innovations must be identified and
implemented at an early stage. We constantly observe our competitors and the markets so as not to
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miss trends or new developments. This enables us to identify and implement trends and changes at
an early stage.

Presentation of Opportunities
Markets and Customers
The REWE combine is represented in the Western and Eastern Europe countries with successful
brands and distribution strategies. The REWE combine can utilise its opportunities on the market by
developing new business models and by further developing innovative sales concepts and
consistently aligning its actions to the customers' needs.
As such, the customer is the focal point of the Group's actions. By expanding the product lines of
regional and sustainable products, the REWE combine is taking a leading role in the food retail
sector, which is distinguishing it significantly from the competitors.
In international business, the REWE combine signifies retail brands such as BILLA, MERKUR, BIPA,
PENNY and IKI that have a high degree of name recognition. Our strength is an innovative product
line which is tailored to specific countries and is continually improved and expanded. Improvements
in quality and freshness lead to a positive customer perception and strengthen our competitive
position.
With the addition of the Convenience business segment in 2020, the REWE combine expanded its
activities into the food service business. The strong brands Lekkerland, Conway and REWE To Go
mean that the REWE combine has a portfolio to optimally supply food service customers nationally
and internationally with convenience ranges and services as well as to support them with innovative
concepts.
We are in a position to improve our market share through investments in a modern and extensive
branch network and by focusing on strong brands and sales concepts.
The intensified expansion of our tourism business could enable us to solidify and expand our position
in the European market. Extending the value chain and expanding into additional source markets
create further added value and increase the potential of harnessing market opportunities.
We want to continue to exploit the opportunities to profit from the growth of online sales and online
business by further expanding our online activities. At the same time, we can further expand our
market position by sensibly linking our strong brick-and-mortar retail activities and travel service
activities.
By integrating new business models, we can take advantage of the opportunities to generate further
constant growth and leverage synergies.

Prices
The prevailing strong competition in the food retail sector, the continuing price wars and the
increasing share of brand articles being sold in the discount sector are sharply reducing margins in
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the food retail sector. Should the price wars and competitive pressure abate or ease, this could lead
to increasing revenue and margins and therefore positive growth of gross margins.
The success of our retail companies is dependent to a considerable extent on the purchase prices. In
the past we formed a purchasing company in Brussels with E.Leclerc in order to meet the growing
challenges of the competition in retailing and the increasing internationalisation of the food retail
sector.
We are also part of the COOPERNIC strategic alliance with other European retail companies. We can
counter the risk of purchasing price volatility and leverage international purchasing potentials
through joint purchasing and by negotiating terms and conditions.

Costs
Continuous optimisations of processes and costs lead to improvements in productivity which
positively impacts costs, and in turn, earnings.

Management's Overall Assessment of the Risk Situation
Due to our activity in the retail and tourism sectors, we are particularly dependent on demand for
consumer goods and the competitive situation. Recent years have shown that economic
development in the countries of Western, Southern and Eastern Europe sharply impacts purchasing
power and therefore demand for consumer goods. Even if the food retail sector is not as strongly
affected by the economic crisis as other retail sectors, a degradation of general conditions still has a
negative influence on the Company's success.
A substantial degradation of general economic conditions and an intensification of the political and
economic situation in the leading nations in America, Asia and Europe will greatly increase potential
risks. Developments within the European Union and the discussion surrounding its future could also
lead to higher potential risks. In the Travel and Tourism business segment, the booking behaviour of
customers is significantly influenced by general economic conditions and external factors. Political
events, natural disasters, epidemics or terrorist attacks influence the demand for travel in certain
destination areas.
The current economic uncertainty caused by the coronavirus crisis has a material impact on the
REWE combine's revenue and EBITA development. From today's perspective it is difficult to visualise
the overall development for the Group going forward. What is apparent is that Travel and Tourism
business segment will be forced to accept considerable losses of revenue due to the coronavirus
crisis. Assessing the risk situation is very difficult since any estimate is dependent on the duration and
intensity of the crisis. The food retail and convenience business segments are currently recording
revenue and earnings growth as a result of the current situation. By contrast, DIY stores business
segment is forced to accept drastic cuts in revenue and profits due to government-imposed store
closures for end-customers.
Overall, however, there are currently no identifiable risks whose materialisation could threaten the
continued existence of the REWE combine.
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Report on Expected Developments
1.

FUTURE MACRO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The report on expected developments considers the relevant facts and events known as at the date
the report was prepared, which could influence future business development. It is still too early to
predict the spread of the coronavirus, the availability of vaccines and the medium- to long-term
impacts on the global economy. For this reason, the table below presents data from the International
Monetary Fund (IMF) and the joint forecast, which were made available in October 2020. In some
instances, in order to provide a more current view in the report on expected developments, we have
relied on other sources such as the "UniCredit Macro and Markets 2021-2022 Outlook" and "Fitch
Solutions Country Risk Reports" – both published in December 2020 – as well as the "UniCredit CEE
Quarterly Q1/2021" published in January 2021; these reports reflect more current developments
than the joint forecast and the IMF's World Economic Outlook.
As early as the summer of 2020, a second wave of infections hit a number of countries such as the
United States, Spain and France. In the autumn, the virus spread again more intensively in further
countries such as Germany, Italy, the United Kingdom and eastern Europe. Governments reacted first
and foremost by imposing measures such as local restrictions for certain regions and activities. As
infections continued to spread towards the end of 2020, certain countries imposed stricter
nationwide measures, such as shutting down catering and hospitality venues. On the whole, it was
hoped that these measures would have a less severe economic impact, as only selected sectors were
affected by closures, in contrast to the spring 2020. After a slight easing in January and February
2021, coronavirus infection rates began to climb again. The measures imposed in order to contain
the third wave are likely to cause economic development in many countries – already off to a weaker
start in 2021 due to measures imposed in reaction to the second wave – to be muted at first before
picking up pace again over the course of the year.
The IMF forecasts global economic growth of 5.5 per cent, and economic growth in Europe of 4.2 per
cent. To bolster the economy, the EU has launched a "Next Generation EU" (NGEU) recovery fund
with a volume of 750.0 billion euros. The majority of the funds is intended to flow to the countries in
2021, to be used primarily to strengthen the economy – particularly for the purpose of digitalising
the economy and fighting climate change. In mid-March, the United States passed a 1.9 trillion dollar
"coronavirus rescue plan" to shore up its economy.
Ultimately, the degree to which the economy can recover depends mainly on the course of the
pandemic – including in light of emerging variants which spread significantly faster and increase the
risk of further waves of infections – and the availability of vaccines. At present, the EU has approved
four vaccines for use. If the supply of vaccines continues to face delays or containment of renewed
infection outbreaks proves difficult, this will have a detrimental effect on the outlook.
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Forecast economic data for REWE Group countries
in %¹

GDP
2020p

Inflation
2021p

2020p

Unemployment

2021p

2020p

2021p

Germany

-5.4

3.5

0.5

1.4

4.2

4.3

Austria

-6.7

4.6

1.2

1.5

5.1

5.6

Czech Republic

-6.5

5.1

3.2

2.7

2.8

3.2

Netherlands

-5.4

4.0

1.1

1.5

4.1

4.8

Belgium

-8.3

5.4

0.5

1.3

5.6

6.1

Italy

-9.2

3.0

0.1

0.6

9.7

11.1

Romania

-4.8

4.6

2.6

2.9

5.3

5.4

Hungary

-6.1

3.9

3.4

3.3

4.6

4.9

Slovakia

-7.1

6.9

1.8

1.9

6.6

7.1

Lithuania

-1.8

4.1

1.1

1.4

8.1

8.4

Russia

-3.6

3.0

3.2

3.2

5.6

5.2

Spain

-11.1

5.9

-0.2

0.8

15.9

16.8

Bulgaria

-4.0

4.1

1.4

1.8

4.5

4.6

Switzerland

-5.3

3.6

-0.8

0.0

3.2

3.6

Luxembourg

-5.8

5.9

0.5

1.3

7.0

7.1

-10.0

4.5

0.8

1.2

5.4

7.4

Croatia

-9.0

6.0

0.0

0.8

8.2

8.3

Sweden

-4.7

3.5

0.8

1.2

8.5

8.6

France

-9.0

5.5

0.6

1.2

7.6

9.6

Denmark

-4.5

3.5

0.4

1.0

5.7

5.8

Norway

-2.8

3.6

1.4

3.3

4.5

4.3

United Kingdom

Sources: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook Database October 2020, Update January 2021; Joint forecast (“Gemeinschaftsdiagnose”)
Database Autumn 2020
p=projected; ¹ year-on-year GDP change in per cent

In its World Economic Outlook (WEO), the International Monetary Fund (IMF) forecasts economic
growth of 3.5 per cent for Germany. The ifo Institut (ifo) predicts 3.7 per cent growth in its economic
forecast spring 2021, while it has lowered its winter outlook of December 2020 by 0.5 percentage
points. In its forecasts of December 2020, the ifo assumed that the measures imposed in November
2020 to contain the coronavirus would remain in force until March 2021, that vaccinations would
commence in January 2021 and thus that the rate of infection would be increasingly brought under
control. Because the figures for new infections continued to rise in March – particularly in connection
with variants – and the vaccination campaign is behind schedule, the lockdown was for the moment
extended until 18 April 2021. The new German Infection Protection Act has been in effect since 24
April 2021: If defined figures are exceeded, the nationally binding emergency brake takes effect. It is
expected that the economy will experience only weak growth at the beginning of the year because
on the one hand private consumption will continue to be severely reduced due to the imposed
restrictions and on the other hand consumers will remain reticent due to high levels of uncertainty.
This is expected to reverse as restrictions are lifted in the future, resulting in strong growth in private
consumption. Investment activities by companies are likely to remain unaffected by renewed
lockdowns and the upwards trend is expected to persist, with the result that overall economic output
of goods and services will reach pre-crisis levels by the end of 2021. The crisis will leave a lasting
mark on the labour market despite the wide-scale take-up of short-time work.
The IMF forecasts 4.6 per cent growth for the Austrian economy. UniCredit Bank Austria Business
Indicator as of December 2020 projects a 3.1 per cent growth in 2021. Because of the second wave
and the restrictions imposed, which affected winter tourism and many other service sectors, the
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economy has suffered a downturn after a strong recovery in Q4 2020. The slump is expected to
continue through the beginning of 2021, because it is assumed that the measures imposed in the
first months of 2021 will be retained in part and it is expected that the industrial economy, which
until then has been supportive, will begin to lose steam. For 2021, it is assumed that the economy
will return to normal as progress in the vaccination programme is made beginning early on in the
year. Nevertheless, the currently high propensity to save and losses of private household income due
to short-time work and unemployment and a restraint to invest by companies will mean that GDP
will not return to pre-crisis levels until 2022 at the earliest. The effects on the labour market will be
apparent in the service sector in particular.
The IMF's forecast for Italy, which had already been struggling with structural economic problems
prior to the coronavirus crisis, calls for 3.0 per cent growth in 2021. In its December 2020 forecast,
UniCredit Research expected GDP to increase by 2.8 per cent (outlook for 2022: 4.4 per cent).
Because of rising infections at the end of 2020, it is expected that activities in the retail, transport
and catering sectors in Q1 2021 will fall sharply and manufacturing will feel the impact caused by
weaker demand. A strong recovery is expected to follow, among otherreasons because Italy is due to
receive roughly 30 per cent of the EU's recovery funds. Following the collapse of the governing
coalition in mid-January, a new government was elected in mid-February. The labour market, which
remained stable in 2020 thanks in part to the short-time work measures, is expected to feel the
effects of the coronavirus crisis in particular in the service sector in 2021.
The IMF forecasts economic growth of 5.9 per cent for Spain, while UniCredit Research called for 3.3
per cent growth in December 2020 (2022: 6.7 per cent growth). An incipient economic recovery in
the summer of 2020 was halted in its tracks by a second wave of coronavirus infections, which was
far more severe than the first. The economic impact of the measures imposed are expected to be felt
into the first quarter of 2021. The situation is expected to begin to normalise in the second half of the
year. This depends, among other reasons, on how tourism – an important sector to the Spanish
economy – fares. Growth of 6.7 per cent is expected for 2022 and is thus still below pre-crisis levels.
Spain will receive roughly 140 billion euros from the EU recovery fund in support. The situation on
the labour market, which has been under heavy strain since the financial crisis, is expected to further
deteriorate.
The economies of eastern European countries are expected to be influenced by how rapidly
everyday life will return to normal thanks to vaccination. Moderate growth is forecast for the Czech
Republic in 2021, and economic growth in 2022 is expected to be back above pre-crisis levels. Among
other reasons, the collapse of the tourism sector and manufacturing are placing strains on the
economy. In particular the automotive industry represents a major factor. This has been heavy hit by
the crisis and depends on how demand in Europe develops. Private households are expected to
remain reticent due to a further lockdown and due to labour market uncertainty.
Beginning in the second quarter of 2021, now that unemployment reached its peak in Q1, economic
development in Romania will be increasingly bolstered by private household consumption and
infrastructure investments, which will also be supported by funds from the EU. Economic growth is
expected to return to pre-crisis levels in the first half of 2021, although this depends heavily on the
development of exports and manufacturing.
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Economic development in Hungary essentially depends on tourism and demand for cars. Economic
recovery will be supported by the EU recovery fund, which is intended to stimulate investment and
employment. The economy is expected to return to pre-crisis levels in the first half of 2022.
The rising level of infections in Slovakia could restrain the incipient recovery of consumer confidence,
and could thus impact economic growth, as could the dependence of the automotive industry – a key
sector – on demand for new cars in the EU. It is not expected that the economy will return to precrisis levels before summer 2022.
In 2020, Lithuania recorded the lowest decline in economic output, and it is expected that the
country will return to pre-crisis levels before the end of 2021.
Economic development in Russia will be bolstered in 2021 generally by both domestic and foreign
demand. However, the recovery of private consumption will be limited by low wage growth and
restrictions imposed by the Russian National Bank on lending to private households. Corporate
investments in the oil sector – resulting from a restriction on production imposed due to the OPEC+agreement – will be lower than necessary to achieve pre-crisis levels.
Economic recovery in Bulgaria is expected to be weaker than in other eastern European countries at
first. It is among the countries hardest hit by the second wave of coronavirus infections. In addition,
it is assumed that the parliamentary elections scheduled for the spring will lead to a delayed start to
the NGEU programme. Persistent uncertainty will translate to reticence on the part of private
households and companies to spend and invest. The recovery of the economy in the EU's poorest
country also depends on the tourism industry.
Positive development is expected for Croatia, as the country benefits signigicantly from the EU
recovery fund. Because the funds are intended specifically for public sector projects, it is expected
that public investment in particular will support the recovery. Because the economy is heavily
dependent on tourism, infection rates together with the travel advisories issued by other countries
are important for the economic development.
The IMF forecasts 3.6 per cent growth for Switzerland, and in December UniCredit Research
projected 3.0 per cent growth in 2021. Switzerland has opted to follow a liberal path in combating
the second wave of the pandemic, with the expected consequences of that path having a moderate
impact on economic activity. It is unclear what effects lower consumer spending and restricted
tourism will have on economic output. It is expected that economic output will reach pre-crisis levels
in the second half of 2021.
The IMF expects economic growth in the United Kingdom to reach 4.5 per cent; UniCredit Research
forecasts GDP growth of 4.3 per cent in 2021. At the beginning of the year, the United Kingdom was
reporting new record infection and death rates every day in connection with the coronavirus, caused
in part by a mutated variation that was spreading significantly faster than the previous variant. At the
beginning of the year, the country was in its third lockdown; in London a state of emergency was
declared due to an impending exhaustion of hospital capacity. Since the vaccination campaign is
progressing well and is having a positive effect on the incidence of infection, the measures have been
eased since April. A further challenge for the economy is the United Kingdom's exit from the EU
Single Market and Customs Union. Because of these two factors, it is not expected that the British
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economy will return to pre-crisis levels before the end of 2022. A programme aimed at supporting
the labour market was extended by the British government until March 2021.
The measures imposed in Scandinavia in response to the increasing rate of infection and concerns
about the spread of the virus will cause a delay in the economic recovery in 2021. Sweden, which
long adopted a liberal path to combating the pandemic, has now also imposed measures placing
severe restrictions on public life and economic activity. In Norway, too, measures were intensified
due to the progression of the coronavirus. In addition, it is expected that investment in oil will
decline sharply in 2021. These developments will translate to reduced economic activity at the
beginning of the year. Although it is expected that GDP in Sweden and Norway will return to precrisis levels by the end of 2021; this is forecasted to occur by 2022 in Denmark.
The IMF forecasts 5.5 per cent growth for France; as of December 2020, UniCredit Research expects
a 3.2 per cent increase in GDP in 2021. It is also expected that the restrictions imposed in France in
response to the second and third wave will affect economic output through the first quarter of 2021.
The easing of restrictions and the availability of vaccines will have a positive impact on economic
output, although the sectors hardest hit by the pandemic (such as hospitality and catering) will need
time to recover from the crisis. It is also expected that private consumption and corporate
investment will initially only pick up at a slower pace. GDP is not expected to return to pre-crisis
levels before 2022.
Economic recovery in the Benelux countries is also expected be muted due to the retention of social
distancing measures on a wide scale even though the increasing vaccination rate over the course of
the year is likely to bring about a return to normality. It is generally expected that private households
and companies will remain cautious due to uncertainty, although they can be expected to provide
positive impulses for the economy.

2.

EXPECTED REVENUE AND EBITA DEVELOPMENT

Due to the high level of uncertainty caused by the Corona pandemic, our forecasting ability is
considerably affected. Especially in the Travel and Tourism and DIY stores segments, we expect a
massive impact on revenue and internal EBITA in the 2021 financial year. Conversely, for retail
segments, opportunities may arise from ongoing lockdown measures that are not considered in the
forecast. The actual development of revenue and EBITA will largely depend on how strong and how
long the effects of the pandemic persist in the individual business segments and divisions.
We expect the following developments for the individual business segments and divisions:
Retail Germany
In the REWE division, the strengthening of the price-performance perception in the over-the-counter
business and the further development of the online business will generally remain at the forefront in
2021. Investments in the existing store network and logistics will secure the Company's long-term
future.
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Estimates as to how revenue and internal EBITA will develop continue to be subject to considerable
uncertainty. Based on expectations that the impacts of the coronavirus pandemic will ease in the
current year, resulting in an increase of consumption away from home, we expect lower revenue as
well as reduced internal EBITA as compared to the previous year.
For the PENNY division, we project reduced revenue as compared to the previous year. After a
positive internal EBITA in 2020, we expect a negative internal EBITA in 2021.. This is due mainly to
increased competition in the discount sector as well as measures to improve customer perception.
Additional investments in the existing store network will continue to weigh on earnings.
The optimisation of the product range, efficient process and cost structures, and a rising number of
stores will have a positive effect on earnings growth.
Retail International
We expect revenue in the Austria and CEE Full-Range Stores divisions to increase in 2021 as
compared to 2020. We assume that the revenue trend in the food retail sector will not be materially
influenced by further government measures relating to the coronavirus pandemic. The growth on
existing space and the modernisation work – both completed and still in planning – will lead to
further revenue growth.
At the beginning of 2021, the trend in Austria, as in Germany, continued to be influenced by the
coronavirus crisis. BIPA Austria continues to develop positively, and is expected to make a positive
contribution to the division's earnings 2021. Increased activities to raise price-performance
perception and non-recurring profits in the previous year give cause for us to expect a reduced
internal EBITA year on year for Austria in 2021.
We expect that the existing store network and expansion activities in Eastern Europe will also
generate revenue growth. The situation in Russia remains challenging. Further impacts of the
coronavirus pandemic could still significantly influence the development in eastern Europe. On the
whole, we expect a year-on-year increase in internal EBITA in 2021.
At PENNY International, revenue is forecast to increase as compared to 2020. This is due primarily to
the positive performance of existing stores and the continued expansion. The positive revenue trend
also has a positive influence on the earnings situation, although increasing costs will erode this. For
2021, we have therefore projected internal EBITA to be at the same level as in the previous year.
Convenience
We expect business development in the Convenience business segment to return to normal over the
course of 2021. The lifting of restrictions will lead to a normalisation of the product range and,
overall, to a revenue at the previous year's level. One-off valuation corrections in 2020 also
influenced the earnings trend from 2020 to 2021. On the whole, we expect a year-on-year decrease
in internal EBITA in 2021.
Travel and Tourism
The forecasts relating to developments relevant to the Travel and Tourism business segment are no
longer tenable in the wake of current developments.
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Because Travel and Tourism continue to suffer under travel restrictions and advisories and it is not
possible to foresee how the situation will develop in the coming months, it is currently not possible
to make a valid prediction. The main factor here is the duration of the crisis. The longer it lasts, the
more pronounced the adverse effects on revenue and earnings development will be.
We expect bookings to increase to above the level recorded in 2020 over the course of the year,
although they will not yet return to the levels we saw in 2019. We expect revenue and internal EBITA
to be up compared to 2020.
The decline in new travel bookings caused by the pandemic will reduce the Travel and Tourism
business segment's contribution to the liquidity position of the REWE Group in financial year 2021 as
compared to its contribution prior to the coronavirus crisis. Appropriate countermeasures are being
put in place in the operating business in order to react to the change in demand and reduce the likely
effects on revenue and earnings development. Even if key destinations are closed for a longer period,
the REWE Group's liquidity reserves are sufficient to meet all obligations as they fall due, even
without recourse to government lending schemes.
To secure its financial flexibility and independence, the REWE Group reduced an additional credit line
of 1.0 billion euros taken out in April 2020 to a volume of 500.0 million euros in January 2021 and in
March 2021 refinanced it with a volume of 750.0 million euros and a term of 18 months (plus the
option to renew for a further 12 months). This credit line serves as a reserve to supplement the
existing 2.0 billion-euro syndicated loan and has not been drawn down. Thanks to this, the REWE
Group remains prepared to meet any potential financial challenges that may arise in connection with
this crisis.
DIY Stores
The DIY Store business segment expects its revenue trend to be down year on year. The high
revenue figures generated in the previous year due to the coronavirus pandemic are not expected to
be achieved again in 2021. Due to the lower level of revenue, internal EBITA will also be down year
on year in 2021.
At the beginning of 2021, the DIY Store business segment was affected by temporary store closures
for end-consumers respectively strict restrictions on selling activities during the coronavirus crisis.
Any prolongation of existing measures or imposition of additional restrictions would cause revenue
and earnings to deteriorate.

Management's Overall Assertion on Revenue, Internal EBITA and Debt
Development
The coronavirus crisis will have a material impact on the REWE Group's revenue and EBITA
development. From today's perspective it is difficult to forecast the overall development for the
Group because of economic uncertainty. This depends largely on the further development and
intensity of the pandemic. It should be assumed that legal measures and restrictions will continue to
dominate peoples' daily routine and influence all aspects of public life. The intensity and the diversity
of the measures taken in individual countries adds further uncertainty and, as a result, predicting
how the crisis will unfold can only be a matter of guesswork.
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On the whole, we expect the REWE combine to report revenue in 2021 at the same volume recorded
in the previous year. By contrast, we expect internal EBITA to be down year on year.
A more specific overall assertion for the Group is not possible due to the coronavirus crisis and the
associated uncertainty in assessing current revenue and earnings development in the individual
business segments.
The effects depend first and foremost on the duration of the crisis and the associated restrictions.
Net financial debt will continue to grow through to the end of 2021 due to the high level of
investments and tax payments caused by the positive results of financial year 2020. The REWE
combine has sufficient lines of credit to guarantee its solvency at all times.
Cologne, 7 May 2021
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